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By MICHAEL TROUCHE

Past-Courier Reporter

One of Charleston’s long-hidden gems now fully ex-
posed by the convention center development is St.
Mary’s Catholic Church aww

The beauty of the neo-classical style church belies a
turbulent history. St. Mary's has endured religious
schism and intoleration, natural disaster, military bom-
bardment and, most recently, tremors from pile-
driving for the proposed convention center.

The property on which the Hasell Street church
stands was purchased in 1789 by a trusteeship repre-
senting the small band of Irish immigrants that made
up the Catholic community of Charleston. On it stood a
delapidated wooden guest house, which was established
by the Rev. Thomas Keating as the Church of the
Blessed Virgin Mary of the Annunciation on Aug. 24,

1789. This action was particularly significant in that it
mannirred o fill vaear nriar to renaal of 3 1808 Saouth
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Ceiling and altar at St. Mary’s Church show intricate craftsmanship.

St. Mary’s Church Still Stands
Despite Bombing, Fire, Schism

Do You Know Your
Charleston?

congregation of St. Mary’s were well-acquainted with
persecution at the hands of the English and were forced
to contend with continued intoleration at the hands of
the predominantly Protestant Charleston population,
which occasionally tarred and feathered Catholics.
This, no doubt, fostered a zealous spirit of defiance

among segments of the congregation that would lead to
later troubles for St. Mary’s.

As the original Catholic Church in the Carolinas and
Georgia, St. Mary’s attracted Catholic immigrants of
other nationalities during the late 18th and early 19th
centuries. Particularly notable was the influx of French




Continued From Page 1-B

Catholics fleeing the uprisings in Santo
Domingo during the 1790s. As oppressed
Catholics, they were welcomed by the
congregation at St. Mary’s, and their
group included white plantation owners
as well as black servants,

The graveyard that surrounds the old
church is still a testimonial to its diversi-
fied background, with epitaphs in Latin,
English and French. Two daughters of the
famed Count de Grasse, hero of the battle

terred on the west side of the church.

With the help of the French immi-
grants, who nearly doubled the size of the
congregation, the old wooden structure
was razed and replaced by a brick church
in 1806. In spite of the influence of the
French segment of the congregation, as
indicated by the fact that official records
of St. Mary's were written in French from
1796 to 1822, the trusteeship that con-
trolled the Hasell Street property re-
mained in the hands of a small, fiercely
independent Irish cadre.

It was the unwillingness of the trustees
to accept ecumenical authority that led to
the infamous 1816-18 “Charleston
Schism.” The conflict arose as the result
of the appointment of a Rev. De
Cloriviere as pastor of St. Mary’s on Feb.
28, 1816. Well-known as a royalist emigre
from France, De Cloriviere was feared by
the trustees, who refused to acknowledge
his authority over church property at St.
Mary's, ' :

This action was clearly in violation of
apostolic canon 40 of the Roman Catholic
church, which forbids investiture or con-
trol of church property by laymen. The
congregation split, some following De
Cloriviere, who established a chapel on
Cannon Street, while others remained
steadfast in opposition despite an inter-

Neale of Philadelphia.

The schism and interdict ended with the
departure of De Cloriviere in December
1818, but the trusteeship did not officially
give up title to St. Mary’s until 1907, The
return of St. Mary's to the good graces of
Catholicism was due to the work of the
Right Rev. John England, first bishop of
the diocese of Charleston. Bishop Eng-
land, who used St, Mary’s as the diocese
cathedral until purchase of the present
| site at Broad and Legare Streets in 1822,
| persuaded the congregation of St. Mary's

of Yorktown during the Revolution, lie in- _

dict placed on St. Mary’s by Archbishop |

to adopt a constitutional proprietorship of
church property while accepting the ecu-
menical decisions of the Roman Catholic
hierarchy.

Tranquility at St. Mary’s was inter-
rupted by the great fire that swept
Charleston on April 28, 1838, reducing the
church to ruins. The cornerstone of the
present structure was laid on Aug. 15,
1838, and in it was placed a copper box
containing newspapers of the day, a
parchment including names of local and
church officials, and a bottle of seeds with
directions as to how to sow them should
they be found centuries later.

The new church, which was completed

on June 6, 1839, is adorned with a painting
of the crucifixion salvaged from the ruins
of the earlier structure. Painted in 1814
by Charlestonian John S. Cogdell, the can-
vas was repaired by the artist and re-
stored to its present position behind the
main altar,

Included in the walls and floors of the
new church were the graves of priests and
parishioners for whom there was no
longer room in the tiny adjoining ceme-

tery.
St. Mary’s averted near disaster during
the War Between the States, weathering

several years of random bombardment

...St. Mary’s Church Has Turbulent History

from Union cannon. One shell dislodged
the Cogdell painting and another landed
in the sanctuary during Sunday mass. In -
the late stages of the war, frequency of -
the shelling forced evacuation of the
church and scarred the south wall of St
Mary’s with marks that are still evident
today. Gravestones shattered by thé -
shells were left in a pile until 1896, when -
they were used in the foundation of the
church’s marble altar.

St. Mary's underwent a major
beautification project in the less turbulent
Victorian period. In 1880, four massive
Ionic columns with wrought-iron gates
were added to the church’s portico. In
1896, in addition to the marble altar, 23
oils depicting various holy scenes painted
by the renowned Caesare Porta of Romeé
were placed on the walls of the church, Ip
the same year, each of the church’s 25
windows was replaced with an elaborate '
stained-glass montage made by the Royal
Bavarian establishment of Munich.

Today, St. Mary's stands in contrast to
its stark surroundings as an object of
beauty and serenity. Only the silent ten-
ants within its walls and surrounding
graveyard could understand how para-
doxical that image is. ¢
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